ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 19, 2008
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Kurt O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 337

"An Act establishing the Alaska Health Care Conmm ssion and the
Al aska health care information office; relating to health care
planning and information; repealing the certificate of need
program for certain health care facilities and relating to the
repeal ; annul | i ng certain regul ations required for
i npl enentation of the certificate of need program for certain
health care facilities; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 345
"An Act anending the certificate of need requirenents to exclude
expenditures for diagnostic imaging equipnent in certain
ci rcumnst ances. "

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 337
SHORT Tl TLE: HEALTH CARE: PLAN COMM SSI OV FACI LI TI ES

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 19, 2008



SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 22/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 22/ 08 (H) HES, FIN

01/ 24/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 24/ 08 (H Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 08 (H) M NUTE( HES)

01/ 31/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 31/08 (H) Hear d & Hel d -- Assi gned to
Subconmmi ttee

01/ 31/ 08 (H) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 09/ 08 (H) HES AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 09/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 08 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 19/ 08 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 345
SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAL FACI LI TY CERTI FI CATE OF NEED
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

01/ 30/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 08 (H) HES, FIN

02/ 09/ 08 (H) HES AT 9:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

02/ 09/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 08 (H) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 19/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

KAY BI AS, Al aska Representative

Radi ol ogy Busi ness Manager's Medi care Advisory Commttee
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345.

JEFF COCK, Board President

Greater Fairbanks Community Hospital Foundation, |ncorporated
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 337 and in
support of HB 345.

CHRI STI NE SCOTT, Patient

Advanced Medical Centers of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

ANN MATTHEWS
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

ROD PERDUE, Enpl oyee

Fai r banks Menori al Hospital

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HB 337 and
HB 345.

MARK ACKLEY, Chief Executive Oficer

| magi ng Associ ates of Providence

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345.

M KE MCNAMARA, M D
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345.

ROBERT BRI DGES, M D.; Oaner

Aur ora Di agnostic | maging

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

M KE PRAX

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the repeal of the
Certificate of Need Program

JI M LYNCH, Enpl oyee

Fai r banks Menori al Hospit al

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HB 337 and
HB 345.

MARTY O LONE, Enpl oyee

Fai r banks Menori al Hospital

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345 and in
opposition to HB 337.

MAREE BARNEY- SUTLEY
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

ROBERT GOULD, Chief Financial Oficer; Head of Operations

Fai r banks Menori al Hospital
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2008



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
support of HB 345.

SCOTT BELL, Vol unteer
Fai r banks Community Hospital

G eater
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

KEVI N DORSEY
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JAMESON SMYTH
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

CHRI STI NE PALMER
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCsSI Tl ON STATEMENT:
HB 345.

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyi st

Al aska Open | magi ng Center,

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
HB 345.

Testified in opposition to HB 337 and

Foundati on

Testified in opposition to HB 337.

Testified in support of HB 337.

Testified during the hearing on HB 337.

HB 337

Testified during the hearing on

LLC (AQ O

Testified during the hearing on HB 337

JEANNI NE HI NVAN, Director
Regul at ory and Governnent Affairs

Advanced Medi cal
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
HB 345.

LEONARD SI SK, Physi ci an;

Centers of Al aska

Testified during the hearing of HB 377

Medi cal Director and Omer

| magi ng Associ ates of Providence (1 AP)

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
HB 345.

Testified during the hearing on HB 337

BOB URATA, Physician; Menber
Board of Directors
Bartl ett Regi onal Hospital

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in support of HB 345.

RYAN SM TH, Chi ef Executive Oficer

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

and

and

and

and

February 19, 2008



Central Peninsula General Hospital

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 337 and in
support of HB 345.

JOEL G LBERTSON, Representative

Provi dence Heal th and Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345.

ROD BETI T, President

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Associ ati on ( ASHNHA)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HB 337 and
HB 345.

NCRVAN STEPHENS, Chief Executive Oficer

Mat - Su Regi onal Medi cal Center (MSRMO)

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HB 345 and
HB 337.

RI CHARD COBDEN, M D.; Chief of Medical Staff

Fai r banks Menorial Hospital (FM)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

JOHN BRI NGHURST, Chi ef Executive Oficer

Pet er sburg Medi cal Center

Pet er sburg, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 345.

M KE POWNERS, Adm ni strator

Fai r banks Menori al Hospital

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 345 and
HB 337.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON cal l ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:04:12 PM
Representatives Fairclough, Keller, Seaton, Gardner, and WI son
were present at the call to order. Representatives G ssna and
Roses arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve
Kurt O son was al so in attendance.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 19, 2008



HB 337- HEALTH CARE: PLAN COWM SSI QV FACI LI Tl ES
HB 345- MEDI CAL FACI LI TY CERTI FI CATE OF NEED

3:04: 36 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the order of business would be a
hearing on two bills: HOUSE BILL NO 337, "An Act establishing
the Alaska Health Care Commission and the Alaska health care
information office; relating to health care planning and
information; repealing the certificate of need program for
certain health care facilities and relating to the repeal;
annulling certain regulations required for inplenmentation of the
certificate of need program for certain health care facilities;
and providing for an effective date" and, HOUSE BILL NO 345
“An Act anending the certificate of need requirenents to exclude
expenditures for diagnostic imaging equipnment in certain
ci rcunst ances. "

3:06: 06 PM
CHAIR WLSON informed participants that the conmttee will only

hear testinony today and that each speaker will be limted to
t hree m nut es.

3:07:49 PM

KAY BIAS, Alaska Representative, Radiology Business Manager's
Medicare  Advisory Conmttee, expressed her suppor t for
Representative Kelly's bill as a fair and equitable alternative

to the present Certificate of Need (CON) program The present
system does not define a physician's office and physicians, in
partnership with hospitals, have been able to purchase inmaging
equi prent wi thout a CON, unless they are radiologists. M. Bias
explained that a ruling by Superior Court Judge N esje
Steinkruger led to the decision that radiologists should not be
given the status of a physician's office. She opined that the
imaging facility in question was not a physician's office due to
the ownership structure: 10 percent radiologists and 90 percent
private investors, and other factors. Ms. Bias stated that the
commi ssioner [of the Department of Health & Social Services] has
not |ooked at the Medicare guidelines to conpare a radiol ogist
physician's office and other imaging centers. She continued to
say that HB 345 clearly offers a solution to the restraint of
trade on radiologists and also protects the smaller conmunities
from for-profit congl onerates. Ms. Bias urged the conmittee to
support HB 345.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 19, 2008



3:10: 00 PM

JEFF COCK, Board President, Geater Fairbanks Comunity Hospital
Foundation, Incorporated, stated his opposition to HB 337 and
his support of HB 345. He informed the conmttee that the
Greater Fairbanks Comunity Hospital Foundation was forned in
1968. Previous to that, city and borough of Fairbanks voters
had turned down the purchase of St. Joseph's Hospital after its
closure. The foundation raised noney and opened a new hospita
in 1972; it now has 500,000 square feet of acute care, |ong-
termcare, and special care facilities. M. Cook explained that
the hospital is owned by the foundation and is operated by
Banner Health. He stressed that the 25 nenber volunteer board
is in opposition to any proposal that wll elimnate, or
drastically alter, the CON program Fairbanks Menorial Hospita
is open 24 hours per day and provides acute and long-term care

energency  services, psychiatric care, care for chronic
inebriates, and treatnment for heart, cancer, and diabetic
patients; all patients are seen regardless of their ability to
pay or their insurance coverage. M. Cook opined that it is
only fair to elimnate CON if those who offer anbulatory care
will also offer 24 hour services to all patients in need.

Fai rbanks is an isolated conmunity and it is inportant to have a
wi de range of nedical services, such as the new cancer center,
heart center, and cath [ ab. However, to continue to offer the
best care possible, the hospital needs to retain all services,
not just the unprofitable and inconvenient services. M. Cook
re-stated the board' s opposition to the elimnation of CONs and
its support of HB 345.

3:13: 21 PM

CHRI STINE SCOTT, Patient, Advanced Medical Centers of Al aska,
stated that she is a patient of Advanced Medical Centers of
Al aska in Fairbanks. She explained that Fairbanks Menorial
Hospital (FMH) does not allow all of the doctors in the
Fai rbanks area to work in the hospital; therefore, she has to go
to Anchorage for nedical procedures. Ms. Scott expressed her
belief that an out-patient surgery center in Fairbanks would
benefit patients and would not take business away from FM
because patients from the nedical center are already being
treated in Anchorage. She spoke in favor of the elimnation of
the CON programin order to encourage capitalization.

3:15:51 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 19, 2008



ANN MATTHEWS, Fairbanks, Al aska, expressed her support for the
governor's plan. She related her experience of getting
energency room care at the hospital for the cost of $5,6000 for
one visit. She opined that the hospital is a for-profit
hospital and nets $25 nmillion to $35 mllion each year. Ms.
Matt hews said that the CON program |[imts choices and variety,
and access to nedical care, while increasing cost. She urged
the commttee to support SB 245 and HB 337.

3:17:57 PM

RCD PERDUE, Enpl oyee, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital, informed the
coonmittee that he works at Fairbanks Menorial Hospital and
wanted to speak from a different perspective. He said that he
has lived in many comunities and places around the world. From
the comunity standpoint, the strength of the hospital benefits
the community in tw areas. He spoke of the Golden Heart
Project; a collaborative effort between the hospital and a
nunber of agencies that wll build a behavioral health detox
center this year. M. Perdue opined that the center benefitted
fromthe support of the hospital, as did the project to build an
out-patient diabetes center three years ago. He pointed out
that he and his famly live in the Interior due to the strength
of the comunity and the hospital is the cornerstone for many
activities. M. Perdue expressed his belief that it is
essential for the well-being of the conmunity to Kkeep the
hospital a strong and viable entity.

3:20: 32 PM

MARK ACKLEY, Chief Executive Oficer, Imaging Associates of
Provi dence, expressed his full support of HB 345. He stated

that the bill wll protect the smaller, vulnerable, comunities
that can not withstand the pressure of new conpetition resulting
from uncontrol |l ed growt h. In addition, the bill wll encourage
a conpetitive consumer-driven environnent that gives choices and
i nproves access to nedical services. M. Ackley opined that HB
345 will benefit both business and patients who are entitled to
a choice in health care decisions; furthernore, it provides
clear guidelines for new nedical businesses to develop wth
confidence and sustainability. For exanple, |maging Associ ates

of Providence has twice received permssion from the state to
provi de imging services to Wasilla and Anchorage. However, the
decisions were reversed and now both parties are involved in
expensi ve | egal proceedings. M. Ackley urged the commttee to
support HB 345.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- February 19, 2008



3:23:25 PM

M KE MCNAMARA, M D., Anchorage, Alaska, infornmed the commttee
that he is an orthopedic hand surgeon and is also president of a
four nmenber advisory group representing twenty-six limted
partner surgeons of the Alaska Surgical Center in Anchorage.
The center conpletes about 5,500 cases per year and has 55
surgeons representing 16 specialties. Dr. MNamara said that
about 20 percent of the center's cases are Mdicaid, Medicare

VA, Tri-Care and Project Access; the latter is free care for the
under served. He stated his opposition to the repeal of CON and
his support of HB 345. Dr. MNamara ren nded the committee that
the original purpose of the CON in Alaska was to prevent the
unnecessary duplication of devel opnent. He pointed out that, in
Anchorage, there are four primary surgical centers that operate
at around fifty-five percent to sixty percent capacity.
Fortunately, the comunity is currently well served by the best
surgeons, nurses, and support staff. However, allowi ng nore
centers to open wll reduce peer oversight and change the
exi sting standard of care. Dr. McNamara pointed out that there
is a nationwide shortage of operating room nurses and the
centers are already understaffed. He opined that undue
conpetition for staff wll not |ower nursing costs but wll

raise costs and overhead. He further explained that |arger
centers have the power to negotiate with insurance conpani es and
unions to manage costs. He urged the conmittee not to repea

CON and risk the loss of the centers of excellence in Anchorage.
Dr. MNamara opined that there is no need to send patients
out si de anynor e.

3:28: 08 PM

ROBERT BRIDGES, M D.; owner, Aurora D agnostic |maging,
informed the conmttee that his private practice is Aurora

D agnostic | magi ng. He stated his support for HB 337;
however, he urged consideration of some of the conmponents of HB
345. Hi s experience in private practice and his position with
an open imaging center warrants his support of the repeal of
CON. The present system hinders care and the influx of new
nmedi cal practices to the state. In addition, it does not
address quality of care and quality assurance for the people of
the state. The major problem is the lack of explicit

definitions and he opined that HB 345 addresses the need to
define what a practice really is. Dr. Bridges indicated that he
provides services to Mdicare and Medicaid patients and is
uniquely qualified for certain procedures; however, he is having
difficulty getting the equipnment he needs due to the CON

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- February 19, 2008



restrictions. Dr. Bridges pointed out the value of diversity to
bring in different ideas and progress. At the very |least, new
definitions and better guidance are needed for the selection of
new nedical facilities.

3:30: 28 PM

M KE PRAX, North Pole, Alaska, stated that he w shed to advocate
for the repeal of the Certificate of Need program and the
elimnation of the health care conm ssion. He expl ai ned that
CON is based on three false prem ses: that anyone should
override an individual's right to partake of or to provide
medi cal services; that anyone can override an individual's right
to partake of or provide specific nmedical services; and that one
can make a potential life or death decision for another. He
opined that CON is a con on the public and a protectionist
measure for certain facilities and providers, who then exclude
others who wish to provide a service. M. Prax said that
Fai rbanks Menorial Hospital was able to build a cancer center
w thout a proven econom cal need for one; thus, the term "con."
He pointed out that his personal decision is to obtain nedica
care in the Lower 48 where services are better and costs are
| ower . M. Prax stated that one can not override individua
decisions on health care and that the provision of services is
up to the market. He urged the commttee to repeal the | aw

3:34: 03 PM

JIM LYNCH, Enployee, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital, informed the
conmttee that he has been a resident of Fairbanks since 1969
and expressed his agreenment with the testinony given by Dr.
McNamar a. He then referred to Representative Kelly's conments
made at the reading of the bill. M. Lynch disagreed wth
Representative Kelly's characterization of the issue as
"hospitals versus docs" and renmnded the conmittee that
physicians are on both sides of the issue. Al so, he stated his
belief that a CON does not limt or elimnate conpetition; with
key government oversight, the CON program is the necessary
foundation that provides the ground rules for conpetition that
creates a sustainable and lasting infrastructure for health care
in Al aska.

3:36:10 PM
MARTY O LONE, Enpl oyee, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital, expressed

his belief that the loss of the CON program would inflict
trenmendous hardship on the rural comunity of Fairbanks. He

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -10- February 19, 2008



related his experiences as a patient in the intensive care unit
and the enmergency room after a severe allergic reaction. M.
O Lone stated that his care was expensive, but the 24 hour per
day care and energency room care provided by the hospital is
val uabl e and is needed. He stated his opposition to HB 337 and
hi s support of HB 345.

3:37:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that there is support for HB 345
and its exenption of the diagnostic imaging centers under
certain conditions. He asked whether the sane concept should be
applied to anbulatory surgery centers, in addition to diagnostic
i magi ng centers.

3:38:43 PM

MR. O LONE expressed his belief that the classifications and
paranmeters of the radiological aspect are set in HB 345. The
paraneters of surgical centers, that can perform arthroscopies
and day surgeries, have not been detern ned.

3:39: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a further explanation from other
speakers who are supporting HB 345 but not HB 337. He re-stated
his question as to why there is support for the elimnation, or
drawi ng back, of the CON for the diagnostic centers, but not for
surgery centers in those sane markets.

3:39:34 PM

MAREE BARNEY- SUTLEY, Fai r banks, Al aska, stated that she is a
patient and a citizen of Fairbanks. She expressed her affection
for the hospital, but said that she feels that the pain doctors
in the community should be credentialed by the hospital. Ms.
Bar ney-sutl ey stated her support for HB 337.

3:41: 07 PM

ROBERT GOULD, Chief Financial Oficer; Head of Operations,
Fai rbanks Menorial Hospital, told the commttee that he was
speaki ng in opposition to HB 337 and in favor of HB 345.
Firstly, he addressed the question of physicians' |ack of access
to Fairbanks Menorial Hospital and said that there was a period
of tinme when pain services were under an exclusive agreenent;
however, that is no |onger the case. As of approximtely six

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -11- February 19, 2008



nont hs ago, the exclusive contract was nodified, and the pain
physicians in Fairbanks have been invited to apply for
privileges to perform surgeries at the hospital. M. CGould
opined that there are no physicians who have applied for
privileges at this tinme. Secondly, he spoke of the value of the
CON program and remnded the commttee of the clains, by
supporters of imaging centers, that the centers would |ower the
prices of imaging services in Fairbanks. He conpared the prices
for three services and concluded that the imaging center prices

are actually higher than those of the hospital. M. Gould al so
conpared costs for surgeries in Anchorage. He wurged the
conmittee to ook at the Medicaid data that is available to the
state and indicated that this information wll allow the
commttee to analyze the cost of services by the health care
providers in the state. He pointed out that conpetition does

not lower the cost of health care and re-stated his support for
HB 345.

3:46: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked M. Gould to speak to the anti-
trust issue, the possibility that CONs violate anti-trust |aws,
that was brought up by the U S. Departnent of Justice during a
previ ous hearing of the bill.

3:46: 54 PM
MR, GOULD said that he did not have a response.
3:47:06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Gould to supply the cost
conparisons to the commttee in witing.

3:47:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his belief that conpetition
ultimately leads to |ower prices. He asked whether M. Gould
could explain the reason for conpetition raising health care
prices.

3:47:50 PM
MR. GOULD opined that a not-for-profit hospital and energency
room nust take all patients, regardless of their ability to pay.

I ndi vidual facilities take the "eight to five" business and pul
profitable services away from the hospitals. Therefore, in

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -12- February 19, 2008



order to provide the non-profitable services of in-patient,
energency room hone health, and diabetes care, hospitals nust
increase prices, resulting in the never-ending escalation of
costs. In addition, overbuilding and capital expenditures also
| ead to higher prices.

3:49: 44 PM

SCOTT BELL, Volunteer, Geater Fairbanks Comunity Hospital
Foundati on, expressed his opposition to HB 337 and opined that
HB 345 is a reasonable conprom se. M. Bell referred to the
testinmonies of Dr. MNamara and M. Gould and affirned that the
CON does a great job of building a strong health care
infrastructure in a rural community such as Fairbanks. He noted
that the hospital wuses profits from its profitable areas to
build and provide services to other areas that are not self-
supporting. M. Bell stressed his support for the continuation
of CON rul es.

3:50: 34 PM
KEVI N DORSEY, Fairbanks, Al aska, explained that the reason

health care prices rise with new conpetition, in the short term
is that the CON system has been in place for a long tinme and has

created a dearth of conpetition that wll initially increase
prices. However, the elimnation of CON will begin the |ong
process of reconstruction that will allow the econony to catch

up. He inforned the conmittee that he is a student of econom cs
and that CON policies are anti-conpetitive. M. Dorsey opined

that Fairbanks Menorial Hospital is a rich and profitable
hospi tal . He further stated that CON inpairs and prevents
physician recruitment; doctors of specialty fields are |eaving
Alaska at a net rate of five to six per year. M. Dorsey

expressed his disagreenent with the idea that Fairbanks is a
rural community; in fact, North Fairbanks is growing and, wth

t he gas pipeline com ng, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital wll not be
able to cope with the nassive growh as Fairbanks becones a
maj or industrial city. He added that CON is a source of
corruption that will lead to a dearth of care, and urged the

committee's support of HB 337.
3:53:30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Dorsey to elaborate on the

reason why CON policies are responsible for a net 1loss of
doctors and prevent physician recruitnment.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -13- February 19, 2008



3:53: 53 PM

MR. DORSEY expl ai ned that doctors have two choices: perform non-
surgical, non-intensive work or work for the hospital. He
opined that many doctors do not want to work under the
hospital's coercive terns and with no basis of conparison to
contracts.

3:54: 47 PM
JAMESON SMWYTH, Fairbanks, Alaska, related his experience as a

patient of the Advanced Medical Cinic in Fairbanks. M. Snyth
said that he has gone to Anchorage three tines for treatnents

that he expected to receive in Fairbanks. These trips are
expensive, painful, and difficult. M. Snyth encouraged the
conmttee to reduce cost and difficulty for patients. He

further stated that going to the imaging centers is a positive
experience as they do not have scheduling problens and do a
great job.

3:56:41 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked whether the situation was that M. Smyth's
doctor was not affiliated with the hospital, or that the
procedure could not be done in Fairbanks.

3:57: 07 PM

MR. SWMYTH answered that one procedure could not be perforned in
Fai rbanks, but the other two could possibly have been done at
the hospital. In answer to a further question, he said that he
was not certain of the possibilities for surgery in Fairbanks.

3:57:44 PM

CHRI STI NE PALMER, Fairbanks, Al aska, inforned the conmttee that
she flew to Anchorage for surgery. In addition to the
di sconfort, as a single parent, the additional tinme needed to
travel is difficult for her famly. The ability to have
surgical procedures in Fairbanks would help save stress and
expense.

3:59:45 PM

CHAI R W LSON cl osed online testinony.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -14- February 19, 2008



4:00: 00 PM

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyist, Alaska Open Imaging Center, LLC (AQQ)),
addressed the issue of HB 345 and why his client participated in
the negotiations sponsored by the governor in an attenpt to
solve these problens. He opined that, although HB 511 was
enacted, there was a lack of a definition of ternms in that
legislation; this is corrected by HB 345. M. Fuhs expl ai ned
that by HB 511, physicians are exenpt from CON, but individual

i ndependent diagnostic testing facilities (IDIF) are not. As a
result, a radiologist went to Fairbanks and opened an inmaging
office as a physician's office, thereby exenpt from CON Its

status was affirned by the comm ssioner of DHSS. Subsequent |y,
another facility was opened in Mit-Su that was also deened a
physi cian's office. Meanwhil e, in Fairbanks, the Alaska Open
| magi ng Center (AOC) was later determned to be an |IDIF and was
cl osed. The lack of a sufficient definition in HB 511 led the
commi ssioner to base her decision on the presence of certain
equi pnment . Subsequent to that, the comm ssioner approved
anot her physician owned facility. In sone cases, there has been
a transfer of ownership of a facility in an attenpt to garner an
exenpti on. Because of these rulings, |awsuits and appeal s have
been filed in Fairbanks and in Mat-Su. He stated that AOQ C has
al ways supported the elimnation of CON in the nmmjor nedical
mar kets of Al aska; that action would solve the problem In lieu
of that action, M. Fuhs pointed out that it is the
responsibility of the legislature that passed a |aw wthout
proper definitions, and put the commssioner in a no-wn
situation, to renedy the situation. He urged the conmittee to
define the ternms and pass the negotiated agreenent as a
reasonabl e conprom se.

4:03: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her appreciation of M. Fuhs
expl anation; however, she asked for further discussion on the
| arger issue of whether the CON policy should be dismantl ed.
4:04:19 PM

MR, FUHS agreed with the need for further study of the CON
issue, but re-stated his belief that it is untenable to have a

| aw on t he books that nobody can interpret.

4:04: 35 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 15- February 19, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Fuhs participated in the
CON Negoti at ed Regul ati ons Conmitt ee.

4:04: 44 PM

MR. FUHS stated that | obbyists were not allowed to participate,
but he did attend and was i nvol ved.

4.:04:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether M. Fuhs felt, as a biased
observer, that the process was one that allowed for equal
representation for all parties.

4:05:23 PM

MR. FUHS answered no. He explained that nine hospitals, several
physician's offices, and one imaging center were represented.

Fur t her nore, negoti at ed rul emaki ng requires 100 per cent
agreenent fromall parties, but the adm nistrator proceeded with
about 70 percent agreenent. Facility ownership is the nost

difficult position for AOC and HB 345 is in the spirit of a
pai nful conprom se on its part.

4:06:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that the rule making group did
not include consuners and, as |awnmakers, the |egislature nust
al so safeguard the best interests of Al askan consuners.

4:07:14 PM

MR. FUHS agreed with Representative Garner's statenent when it
applies to a health care commssion; however, a negotiated
rul emaking [conmittee] includes the providers and participants
only, and is not a public task force.

4:07: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES opined that, when a group is given a job to
do, its work should not be ignored. He asked whether the AQ C
is confortable with the <conclusions of the CON Negotiated
Regul ati ons Comittee.

4:08: 02 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 16- February 19, 2008



MR. FUHS answered yes. The only difference his client, AQC,
has is that they are a home grown, Al askan conpany, and the
requi renment of 100 percent physician ownership is devastating.

4:08: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recalled that the CON discussion has been
going on for years, but this is the first agreenent. Since the
CON Negotiated Regulations Committee has nmet, there has been a
conprom se, he opi ned.

4:09:52 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked whet her, under nornmal situations, 100 percent
agreenent is needed for negotiated rul emaki ng.

4:10: 22 PM

MR. FUHS agreed. He added that a task force will often rel ease
a general recomendati on.

4:10: 26 PM

CHAIR WLSON further asked whether the fact that the agreenent
was issued, with only 70 percent participation, is the reason it
was not | ooked at.

4:10: 59 PM
MR FUHS renar ked:

Chairman WIlson, it does, and that's why | believe
al t hough the comm ssioner hasn't told nme this, why she
didn't go through with it and you know, everything was
agreed to except for the 50 and the 100 percent. I
think that's what | could say was the one sticking
point and there were a couple side agendas there and
that's why that didn't go through

4:11:24 PM
JEANNINE HI NMAN, Director, Regulatory and Governnent Affairs,

Advanced Medical Centers of Al aska, expressed her conpany's
belief that it has denonstrated that repeal of the CON |aws

will: increase the access to nedical care in the state; increase
the quality of nedical care; lead to better physician
recruitnment; and not raise, but |lower, the cost. She asked the

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -17- February 19, 2008



committee to carefully review all of the data submitted fromthe
interested parties and to consider the sources of the data, such
as the Departnment of Justice and the Federal Trade Conm ssion
that are the agencies that are tasked with nonitoring anti-trust

vi ol ati ons. Ms. Hinman supported previous testinony about
future gas line enployees noving into the Fairbanks area and
added that the anticipated increase in injured arny veterans
will also add patients to Alaska that require conprehensive
medi cal treatnent and conplex pain nanagenent. She descri bed
the experience of a veteran whose injuries could be treated in
Fai rbanks with cooperation from the |ocal hospital. She opi ned

t hat Fairbanks Menorial Hospital refused to credential Advanced
Medi cal Centers of Al aska pain providers during litigation, and
after the restriction was wthdrawn, subsequent applications
have not been credenti al ed. Ms. Hi nman stated her conpany's
support of the governor's bill. She concl uded by pointing out
that according, to the CON application of 2007, Fairbanks
Menorial Hospital reported a nedical loss ratio of 1.38 that
translates to profit margin of 38 percent; in addition, branches
in Alaska are the nost profitable of Banner Health Care systens.

4:15:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whet her Advanced Medical Centers of
Al aska provided to the conmttee the docunent from the Federa
Trade Conmi ssi on.

4:15: 33 PM

M5. H NMAN sai d no.

4:15: 39 PM

LEONARD SI SK, Physician; Medical Director and Owner, |maging
Associ ates of Providence (IAP), informed the commttee that |AP
is a physician's office and the physician owner is a
radi ol ogi st . The practice neets the federal governnent Centers

for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CM5) guidelines for
physician's offices in which 50 percent hospital ownership of a
physician's practice is allowed. He noted that | AP physicians
also provide radiology professional services to Providence
Al aska Medical Center. The hospital was chosen to invest in | AP
and | AP supports HB 345, a provision of which requires a m nimum
50 percent physician ownership before exenpting the office from
the state CON process. The bill also requires physician-owners
to interpret inmages in the facility. Dr. Sisk said that
radiology requires access to expensive nmachinery, and it 1is

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 18- February 19, 2008



reasonable that not all of the expense should be paid by the
physi ci ans; partnershi ps between physicians and hospitals for
radiologist's offices are allowed by the federal governnent. He
opi ned that radiologists and hospitals are natural partners to
provi de comuni cation between facilities and thereby, benefit

patients. The nost vocal opponent of this exenption is the
country's largest publicly traded hospital corporation, whose
sharehol ders will benefit from the nonopoly provided by the
st ate. Dr. Sisk pointed out that the bill protects from

conpetition critical facilities in smaller communities wth
popul ati ons of |ess than 60, 000. He stated his support of HB
345 and concluded by pointing out that the state's cost of
i mgi ng charges are set by Medicaid, and quoting charges from
private insurance is an inaccurate nethod to conpare costs
bet ween provi ders.

4:19: 47 PM

CHAIR WLSON advised that insurance providers have limts for
sone procedures. She expressed her concern that the committee
nmust consider what the fight between the hospitals, the imaging
centers, and the surgery centers, neans to patients.

4:21:03 PM

BOB URATA, Physician; Menber, Board of Directors, Bartlett
Regi onal Hospi tal , informed the commttee that he is
representing Bartlett Regional Hospital's position in favor of
HB 345. Dr. Uata opined that elimnating the CON wll be

detrinmental to areas with small markets, such as Juneau. The
increase in conpetition will only be in profitable, specialized,
services; these specialized centers wll take high paying

private insurance patients only and cripple the hospital's role
as the safety net for the community. Strong conmmunity hospitals
are a nmpjor part of rescue response in the event of a natura
di saster. Furthernore, the CON process ensures comunity
pl anni ng that prevents excess capacity in small markets that is
an unwi se use of health care dollars and ultimately will reduce
quality of care. Dr. Urata referred to a cardiac care study,
publ i shed in 2002 by the University O lowa College O Medicine.
In addition, studies by Anerican auto manufacturers, published
by the American Health Planning Association in 2003, found that
surgery was cheaper in states with CON policies. He concl uded
that CON policies protect the consumer by assuring public input,
mai ntai ning accessibility to health care and high quality, and
hel ping to contain costs.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -19- February 19, 2008



4:24:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether Dr. Uata would give his
perspective on the idea that the CON program slows the
recruitnment, and limts retention, of doctors.

4:25:08 PM
DR. URATA said that he has not seen any data that supports that.
4:25:30 PM

RYAN SM TH, Chief Executive Oficer, Central Peninsula GCeneral
Hospital, stated that he was a nenber of the CON Negoti ated
Regul ati on Commttee and t hat HB 345 supports its
recomendations. He opined that the bill will act to reduce the
anmount of litigation, which was one of the goals of the
[committee]. M. Smth expressed his belief that the surgery
centers are not represented by the bill because surgery centers
have not attenpted to use the physician's office exenption in
order to operate. He spoke of physician recruitnment and said
that recruitnment in Sol dotna has been successful in the last two
years. H s experience, in both CON and non CON states, |eads
him to believe that health care and comunity benefits wll
change under the repeal of the CON process. M. Smth pointed
out that the third vote during the negotiation process was the
agreenent to accept a consensus of 67 percent to 70 percent of
the group; in fact, there was an 85 percent consensus at the end
of the process.

4:27:57 PM

JOEL d LBERTSON, Representative, Providence Health and Services,
stated that there are many big issues in health care, and opined
that the health care system is broken at the national and
statew de |evel. M. Glbertson said that, unless health care
reform in the state is addressed, health care costs wll
continue to escalate and the ability to deliver quality care
wll be threatened over tine. Hi s organi zati on supported the
[ CON Negotiated Regul ations Conmittee]; however, trying to solve
all of the health care problens through the CON process is too
great of a task. The sinpler question at the nonent, to resolve
the conflict over the lack of definitions in HB 511, is inproved
by the conpromses in HB 345. M. Glbertson re-stated the
effects of HB 511 and stressed that HB 345 is a reasonable
conpromse that wll, at least, resolve the question that is
causing confusion in the comunity and conflict in the courts

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 20- February 19, 2008



and the administrative hearing process. The bill wll also
all ow the conm ssioner to focus on the bigger question of how to
address health care reformin the state.

4:31: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that the conpronmise wll settle
the majority of the lawsuits brought by the inmaging centers. He
asked whether the solution for out-patient or anbul atory surgery
centers should be offered in HB 345, in order to avoid a simlar
process in the future.

4:31:51 PM

MR. G LBERTSON explained that an anbulatory surgery center
[ (ASC)] can not be a physician's office; therefore, there is no
need to <create a clear standard to separate between a
physician's office and an ASC because an ASC is a clearly
defined licensed facility at the state and federal |evel. The
guestion that is not settled is whether, for the purpose of a
physician and a physician's office that purchases inmaging
equi pnent, they are a physician's office or an independent

di agnostic testing facility. He further explained that
physician's offices are not |icensed and thus, there is no
definition. Moreover, the definition under anbulatory surgery

center has al ready been established.
4. 32: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON further asked whether M. Gl bertson
experiences recruitnment difficulties wth doctors who deci de not
to conme to Al aska because they do not choose to be affiliated
with a hospital.

4:33:32 PM

MR. G LBERTSON said no. He acknow edged that physician
recruitnment is tough, there is no nedical school or residency
program outside of primary care, and physicians graduati ng now
prefer to be enployed by a health care system with regular
schedules and wthout call responsibilities. He opined that
there are always changes to the market and that CON | aws are not
a legitimate excuse for the problem of recruiting physicians to
Al aska.

4:34:54 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -21- February 19, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there is data on whether doctors
are not comng to Al aska because they are not able to open their
own anbul atory center.

4:35:27 PM

MR. G LBERTSON pointed out that the majority of physicians are
recruited to be community physicians. Federal law allows
hospitals to financially support the recruitnment of physicians
and they work with local practices and providers, even though
few physicians conme to woirk for the hospital. In fact,
Provi dence Medical Center attenpts to recruit approximtely 30
to 40 doctors per year into the Anchorage area. M. G bertson
said that he has never heard that CON laws are a barrier to a
physi cian coming into the community.

4:36: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES referred to the report issued by the CON
Negotiated Regulations Commttee and read: "Should CON
processes and definitions be in alignment wth Medicare?" He

t hen asked for an explanation of how Medicare and the state CON
policies are out of "sync."

4:37:23 PM

MR. G LBERTSON responded that, at the federal |evel, the Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Services have defined what is, and
what is not, a IDIF or a physician's office. In fact, at the
federal level, there is no requirenment that there is 100 percent
physician ownership to be a physician's office; a physician's
of fice can be owned by a physician, a physician in a hospital
or by a hospital. He opined that the CON Negoti ated Regul ati ons
Commttee was acknow edging that physicians, at the federal
| evel, can have partners in running private nedical practices.

4:38:34 PM

ROD BETIT, President, Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Hone
Associ ati on (ASHNHA), expressed his organization's opposition to
the repeal of the CON M. Betit called the conmittee's
attention to supporting docunents in the conmmttee packet
identified as the community benefit report and the analysis of
the Departnment of Justice report. He explained that the
community benefit report illustrates the size of the financial
burden that hospitals have in covering the unconpensated portion
of Medicaid, Medicare, and care for the uninsured, in order to

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -22- February 19, 2008



keep the health care system in Al aska afloat. M. Betit
suggested that the commssion will be helpful in figuring out
how to close the gap prior to the elimnation of CON in order to
| evel the playing field. He pointed out that there is $150
mllion in the report and the regional information cones from
across the state. Furthernore, the comm ssion can use the price
reporting information to see whether increased choice leads to
| ower cost. M. Betit noted that ASHNHA reports its prices and

the conparisons will show that |ower cost is not the result.
Having this accurate and unchallenged information from all of
the parties wll lead to a clearer wunderstanding of the

si tuation. He opined that HB 345 wll close the gap on the
problem for imaging areas and re-stated that the ASHNHA Board of
Directors supports the bill at this point in tine.

4:42: 25 PM

NCRVAN STEPHENS, Chief Executive Oficer, Mat - Su  Regi onal
Medi cal Center (MSRMC), informed the commttee that he was part
of the CON Negotiated Regulations Committee and expressed his
di sappoi ntnent that its work went out the w ndow. He di sagreed
with previous testinony and said that there were six hospitals
represented and that the balance of the participants were
representing many of the parties in the legal disputes. He
opi ned that, even though there was tension, the comittee was
effective; however, a 66 percent consensus is insufficient for a
per manent solution to the problem M. Stephens referred to his
earlier testinony and expressed his belief that the CON wll
reduce costs. Furthernore, he said that a lot of what has
happened will lead to a slippery slope of future conflict. One
of the problens is that conpeting centers, that are exenpt, know
about the conflicts and have taken advantage of the situation.
M. Stephens enphasized that MSRMC has built a $101 nillion
hospital for the Mat-Su valley, followed the rules, and is now
being danaged by an inmaging center that did not follow the
rul es.

4:46:27 PM

RICHARD COBDEN, M D.; Chief of Medical Staff, Fairbanks
Menorial Hospital (FWMH), informed the conmittee that he is a
practicing orthopedic surgeon, in addition to being the Chief of
Medi cal Staff at  FMH, He stated that he works wth
Representatives Kelly and Kawasaki and was surprised that HB 345
was represented as being agreed to by everyone. He opi ned that
the rest of the surgeons, included 90 percent of the surgeons
who are not in favor of the CON, did not join in the consensus.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 23- February 19, 2008



Dr. Cobden said that HB 345 will sinply exenpt the diagnostic

i mgi ng centers, and several already exist. He stated that HB
345 is not a conpromse bill. Furt hernore, physicians can not
be recruited to come to Fairbanks, partly due to CON
restrictions, and partly due to the |ocation. In the |ast

ei ghteen nont hs, Fai rbanks has lost six physicians, who
relocated to areas where they could practice in an anbulatory
surgical center. The situation is very difficult and has
resulted in specialty care by visiting physicians. Dr. Cobden
explained that the original reason for the CON law was to
control capital costs, which it no |onger does. The second
reason, cost-shifting, to cover the cost of charity and indigent
care, is a hidden nunber. Dr. Cobden referred to the book,
"Mred in the Health Care Mrass", by Neil Davis, and cited
that, according to the author, 1.3 percent of FMH revenue goes
to charity and indigent care; total revenue is $187 mllion per
year; FMH profit is 12 percent per year. The hospital charges
profitable services to pay for the areas that are not
rei nbursed; however, these charges have no oversight, or rules,
and are not subject to regulation. He opined that this is a
taxing authority that should be held by the |egislature, not by
hospi tal s. Finally, the idea of bringing new physicians to the
state, when the state does not allow them to nmke capital
investnments in their businesses, is discouraging. Dr. Cobden
warned that the state will end up with the best hospitals in the
nation, but with no physicians. He urged the comrittee to pass
HB 337 and deal with problens separately.

4:52: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether Dr. Cobden was speaking
on behalf of the hospital.

4:52:27 PM

DR. COBDEN said no. He clarified that he is the Chief of Staff
and oversees the «credentialing and recruitnment of new
physi ci ans. Dr. Cobden disagreed with previous testinony that
there have been no applications for credentialing from the pain
physi ci ans.

4:52:51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH observed that Dr. Cobden said "we do

not support HB 345" but that previous testinony from three FM
enpl oyees does support HB 345.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 24- February 19, 2008



4:53:21 PM

DR. COBDEN explained that he is the Chief of Medical Staff and
is not speaking for the hospital.

4:53: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the previous testinony, that
stated that HB 345 does not need to deal with anbul atory surgery
centers, is valid.

4:54:32 PM

DR. COBDEN opined that anbul atory surgery centers should not be
excluded from legislation; in fact, anbulatory surgery centers

could be substituted for imaging centers in the bill. There is
separate licensing after anbul atory surgery centers are
establ i shed; however, the bill does not address those issues.

Dr. Cobden stressed that the overlying issue of CON policies,
and resolution of the expensive |awsuits, renmains.

4:55: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether anbulatory surgery centers
can be added into the |anguage of HB 345 to take care of sone of
t hose probl ens.

4:55:29 PM

DR. COBDEN concurred, and then suggested that this addition may
| ead to consensus.

4:55:43 PM

JOHN BRI NGHURST, Chief Executive Oficer, Petersburg Medical
Center, spoke in favor of HB 345 as a reasonable conpronmise to
doing away with CON | egislation. He said that his 35 years of
experience as a hospital adm nistrator have convinced himthat a
CON law instills benefits that outweigh its costs. Intuitively,
it would seem that open conpetition would lead to | ower costs;
however, the health care industry does not always follow |ogic.
M. Bringhurst gave the exanple of two hospitals in a community
of 28,000 people in Oegon. Al t hough the hospitals were bel ow
capacity, there was a joint venture partnership to open a
surgery center. This action led to a |oss of surgical volune at
the hospitals that was |ess than the increase of surgical volune
at the surgery center. M. Bringhurst expressed his belief that

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 25- February 19, 2008



physi cian ownership and self-referrals lead to a conflict of
interest and over-utilization. Furt hernore, when doctors self-
refer there may be no cost conpetition. He expl ained that the
hospital was left with a lower volume of service and nore
conpl ex cases. He then pointed out that the small hospital in
Petersburg is not rich and will have a $900,000 |oss this year
Finally, M. Bringhurst opined that CON does not exclude, but
allows the community to have a choice in whether services are
needful and will |ower cost.

5:00: 14 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked for the nunber of surgeries that resulted
after opening the anbul atory surgery center.

5:00: 33 PM

MR. BRI NGHURST stated that the surgical volunme at the ambul atory
surgery center was higher than the |losses to the previous |evels
at both hospitals, with no increase in population. He said, "It
does create a situation where sonehow, surgeries were just
created.”

5:01: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA conpared this to a personal situation
whereby she received nore referrals for further services after
obt ai ni ng i nsurance cover age.

5:01:39 PM

M KE  POVERS, Adm ni strat or, Fai r banks Menor i al Hospi t al

informed the committee that he is extrenely proud of the
progress the hospital has nmade due to the planning that is
possi bl e under CON. He stated that FWMH has a long record of
success that includes: a long-term skilled nursing facility; a
cancer center; an out-patient surgery center; an inmaging center;
cardiac cath care; electronic medical records; nurses training;
and a conprehensive recruiting program This progress is
related to the | ogical planning provided by CON law. M. Powers
t hen explained that the DHSS recently authorized the addition of

ei ght operating roons in the Fairbanks area. The hospital's
appeal of this crippling action resulted in the final approva
of two additional operating roons; although this is still too
many, M. Powers opined that the system worked. He urged the

commttee for nore support of the planning function at DHSS.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 26- February 19, 2008



5:04:46 PM
CHAI R W LSON cl osed testinony on both bills.
5:06: 22 PM

[ Al though not formally stated, HB 345 and HB 337 were held
over. ]

ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Conmittee*
nmeeting was adjourned at 5:06 p. m

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -27- February 19, 2008



